
Early Rockhampton and river trade 

  
When the Archer brothers, the first white explorers and later pioneers of the district, 
encountered the river they named the Fitzroy in 1853, Charles Archer recorded in his diary 
that they saw 'a fine and navigable looking stream with the tide running up strong'.1 As they 
had come upon the river in their overland travels from the Burnett region, they had no way 
of knowing the difficult nature of the Fitzroy closer to its mouth. During the first influx of 
shipping to Rockhampton in the abortive Canoona gold-rush early in 1858—when the New 
South Wales government declared the settlement an official port of entry with a sub-
inspector of Customs—many vessels became stranded or wrecked on the numerous 
sandbanks and tight bends along the river. Today, features such as Pirate Point, Bronzewing 
Sand and Satellite Passage bear the names of vessels which came to grief at those places.2 
 

From its origins as a river port for the Archers' Gracemere sheep run, Rockhampton 
soon became the administrative and commercial centre for the newly opened pastoral district 
of Port Curtis. Between 1865 and 1892, progressive westward extension of the Central 
Railway to Longreach, with branch lines north to Clermont and the Peak Downs gold and 

  

 
Queensland's decentralised railway system, 1902.

                 (based on Comm. for Railways Report, QPP, 1902, vol. 3, p. 80.) 



copper fields and south to pastoral Springsure, directed all trade to Rockhampton. As 
pioneers took up land in the district and farther west for grazing, Rockhampton developed 
into a bustling port. The wharves drew wool, beef, mutton and hides from the hinterland for 
export to Britain and, in turn, received British manufactured goods for local and regional 
distribution. By the late-1880s, gold from Mount Morgan increased the value of exports 
while blister copper production after the turn of the century swelled the quantity of trade.3 
There was no rail connection to Gladstone in the south until 1905 or to Mackay in the north 
until 1921, so shipping provided the only reliable means of moving goods, mail and people 
into and out of Rockhampton. The Fitzroy was therefore the lifeblood of both the local and 
regional economy. The future of Central Queensland lay with making the river navigable for 
shipping, at least at high tide and, as the vision for port development grew, at all states of the 
tide and for increasingly larger ships.   

 
 

The Wharf, Rockhampton circa 1870s by F.C. Fitler. 
        (Garran, 1886) 

   



 
Loading blister copper from Mount Morgan, Rockhampton's Railway Wharf, early 1900s.   (CCQC) 

 
 



 
            Shipping returns for Queensland Ports, 1888, including Rockhampton. 

                               (QV&P, 1888) 



 
Port statistics for Queensland, 1888, including Rockhampton. (QV&P, 1888) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Railway Wharf circa 1940 with dredge Fitzroy.  Portion of Town Wharves visible  
at top right.        (RML) 
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